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Executive Directors
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KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

(appointed on 11th September 2008)
LAU Chun Kay
MA Chun Hon, Richard
LIAO Zhixiong

(resigned on 11th September 2008)

COMPANY SECRETARY, QUALIFIED

ACCOUNTANT AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER
LI Man Wai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 2002-2006, 20th Floor

Greenfield Tower
Concordia Plaza

1 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong
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Statement R E

Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the EREBMERATRNDIZHELER - &I
EEERE  UREBETURALNKER

high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service
BREINRERE EEEBRER =5

to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business

demanding excellence in all of its operations. ZIR -
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Corporate Profile

The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades
quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire
harnesses and plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group employs approximately
1,600 staff worldwide involved in management, sales and
marketing, shipping, procurement, financial and accounting,
research and development, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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Chairman’s Statement £ [E#{ %

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Directors”), | am
pleased to announce the audited consolidated financial results of
Perennial International Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December
2008.

The Group's turnover was HK$507,628,000 (2007: HK$470,496,000),
up 8%. Profit for the year was HK$22,294,000 compared to
HK$24,398,000 in 2007. Earnings per share were HK$0.112 (2007:
HK$0.123).

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading
of quality power cord and power cord sets, cables and wires, wire
harnesses and plastic resins.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.03 per share. Together with the interim dividend of
HK$0.02 per share, the Group's total dividend for the year 2008
amount to HK$0.05 per share (2007: HK$0.04 per share).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
27th April 2009 to 30th April 2009, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. Subject to
the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 30th April 2009, the final dividend will be paid on or before
15th May 2009 to shareholders whose names are registered in the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
30th April 2009.

In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30p.m. on 24th
April 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, our sales in power cord and power cord sets,

cables and wires, wire harnesses and plastic resins accounted
for 58%, 12%, 29% and 1% of the Group's total turnover,
respectively.

Although manufacturers in the past year have been facing
severe head wind from the Global Financial Tsunami, the
Group has implemented prudent strategy, set defined vision,
adopted risk management, optimized cashflow management,
conducted evaluation and take defensive measures on cost
control. Consequently, the Financial Tsunami has not constituted
significant impact on our result. The Group maintained steady
growth in revenue and profit during the year under review. We,
in the meantime, will continue to implement the same strategy in
2009.

Meanwhile, we focus on the development of high quality, stable
returns and solid growth environmentally-proof products. This
proven strategy has brought in positive contribution to our bottom
line performance.

The implementation of the People’s Republic of China’s new
labour law on 1st January 2008 has undoubtedly increased
our cost. Nevertheless, the Group has continued to adhere
to the regulations upon executing our employees policy. We
are committed to lessening the surging pressure on costs by
capitalizing on semi-automation to enhance efficiency and reduce
manpower. As a result, the additional cost arising from the new
labour law has not constituted substantial increase in cost.
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Chairman’s Statement £ [E#{ %

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group achieved solid growth last year and is expecting
a steady growth in sales volume in year 2009. There will be
challenges arising from the weak global economy and the
economic recession in many mature countries. However, the
Group will continue to implement prudent strategy and take
cautious measures to weather these challenges.

Our core strategy for 2009 is to provide customers with strong
performance products at competitive price. With a progressive
increase in production of high growth wire harnesses and
environmentally-sound halogen-free products, we will continue
to invest our resources in research and development of

environmentally-friendly and green products.

On employees policy front, we will re-engineer our structure to
streamline staff force and reduce expenses. In the meantime,
the Group will capitalize on the Financial Tsunami opportunity to
sharpen our management and operations edge by recruiting well-
educated and experienced talents.

To conclude, 2009 will be a challenging year. But we believe if we
remain positive, optimistic and prudent in enhancing efficiency,
controlling cost and building closer partnership relationship with
our customers, the Group's business will continue to grow and
prosper in a progressive manner.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights
and enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result,
we establish the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere
to the best practice.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is the Group's strong belief.
So we continue to participate and support community activities in
both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.
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Chairman’s Statement

VOTE OF THANKS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, my sincere thanks to our
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous support
and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board

Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2009

Bt

RARBREREFTE ARR B BFFP K

8TH

EEE
FTE
Bz

|NFHE - RRFORGE -

A
@ﬂﬂ

—ETNF=ZA-+=H

Annual Report 2008 —BENEEH O



10

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31st December 2008, the consolidated indebtedness of

the Group, including long-term borrowings of HK$6,313,000,
was HK$73,410,000. The borrowings are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$14,307,000.

As at 31st December 2008, the Group's trade receivables balance
was HK$106,576,000, representing 21.0% of the year’s turnover
of HK$507,628,000. The Group adopted a stringent credit policy to
minimize credit risk.

The interest cover was 6.3 times as compared to 5.2 times in 2007.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31st December 2008, the consolidated shareholders’ equity

of the Group was HK$236,411,000, an increase of 11.2% over that
of the previous year. The debt to equity ratio, (calculated by dividing

total liabilities to shareholders’ equity), was approximately 54.0%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS

During the year under review, capital expenditures were made in
the construction of new facilities at Shi Yan District, Shenzhen and
expansion of production capacity (approximate to HK$17,754,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31st December 2008, the Group's banking facilities

amounting to approximately HK$50,871,000 were secured by legal
charges over certain leasehold land, land use rights, buildings and
investment property of the Group with a total net book value of
HK$39,335,000.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and the
Mainland China continued to be the Group’'s major markets,
accounting for approximately 43%, 31% and 17% of the Group’s
total sales respectively. The remaining 9% of sales were generated

from customers located in Other Asian Countries and Europe.
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EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2008, the Group employed approximately

1,600 full time management, administrative and production staff
worldwide. The Group follows market practice on remuneration
packages. Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined
by senior management annually depending on the employee’s
performance, experience and industry practice. The Group invests
in its human capital, In addition to on-job training, the Group adopts

policies of continuous professional training programs.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Company are
appropriately managed or hedged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2008, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.
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Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness.

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES
With effect from 1st January 2005, the Company has applied

the principles and complied with the requirements of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Directors confirm that the Company fully complies to the
Code Provisions, and adopts Recommended Best Practices as
defined in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities appropriately when possible.

THE BOARD

The Board's primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.
Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility for
the proper direction of the Company.

Perennial International Limited 18 &5 E A R A 7]
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of (9) members whose details are
set out on pages 27 and 32. It meets quarterly and holds specific
meetings as and when they are deemed necessary. The Board
held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st December 2008.
A record of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is set out
on page 23 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to Directors. The Directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group's operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
also has access to independent professional advice where

appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce the independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of
the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages
the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the Group's
businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at
each annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-
election. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. To enhance accountability, any further re-
appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has
served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate

resolution as passed by the shareholders.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
acknowledge receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of their
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its

Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects. The directors should prepare the accounts on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary. The board’s responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment extends to annual and
interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
finance disclosures required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules,
and reports to regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these

committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its

current members included three (3) Independent Non-Executive

Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin (appointed on 11th September 2008)
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

Mr. LIAO Zhixiong (resigned on 11th September 2008)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been revised
to meet the requirements set out in the Code (effective from 1st
January 2005).

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the
external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report and annual
financial statements before they are submitted to the Board;
discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any other matters the external auditors
may wish to discuss, and reviewing the external auditors’ letter to
the management and the management’s response; reviewing the
internal audit programmes and ensuring co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; and considering any findings of major
investigations of internal control matters as delegated by the

Board or on its own initiative and management'’s response.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year, while at
least once a year it meets with the external auditors without
Executive Directors being present. The Audit Committee held
two (2) meetings during the year ended 31st December 2008. An
attendance record of its members at Audit Committee meetings
is set out on page 23 of this report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
financial report and the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2008 and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee
also evaluated the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
is internal control systems and made recommendations to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-

Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin (appointed on 11th September 2008)
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

Mr. LIAO Zhixiong (resigned on 11th September 2008)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages for Directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes, and making recommendations to the Board on

remuneration of the Directors and senior management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee met three (3) times in the year of
2008. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the terms of the Executive Directors’
service contracts. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meetings is set out on page 23 of this

report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin (appointed on 11th September 2008)
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

Mr. LIAO Zhixiong (resigned on 11th September 2008)

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so as

to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent.

The Nomination Committee met two times (2) in the year of
2008. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them
in nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 23 of this report.
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November

2005. Its current members included five (5) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
(Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chairman)
Ms. LI Man Wai
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin (appointed on 11th September 2008)
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

Mr. LIAO Zhixiong (resigned on 11th September 2008)

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to
ensure compliance in every respect with the listing requirements
contained in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions
entered into by the Company so as to ensure compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company whether
of Hong Kong or elsewhere. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures
of the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2008. An attendance record of its members
at the Compliance Committee meeting is set out on page 23 of
this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. Areas for improvement
have been identified and appropriate measures taken so as to
provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

(@) A comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  Management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are
documented and communicated;

(c) System and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that

may have an impact on the Group; and

(d) Internal Audit Team performs independent reviews of the
risks and key controls to provide reasonable assurance to
the management and the Audit Committee that risks and
controls have been adequately addressed.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The function of the Internal Audit Team is mainly responsible
for monitoring the internal control system of the Group. The
Internal Audit Team covers financial controls, business operations,
compliance and risk management. Independent reports are

submitted to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors, taking into
account factors such as the performance and quality of the audit
and the objectivity and independence of auditors. The existing
auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who were
first appointed in 1997.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Group was charged HK$1,280,000 and HK$285,000 by

PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2008.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the accounts of the Company and the
Group. In preparing the accounts, the Board has adopted generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and complied
with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have
also been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in

the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 46 to 48 of this annual

report.

Perennial International Limited 18 &5 E A R A 7]

M EREE 1R (48)

REBBRA BB AR EERAEER
HEDHE - BRBEREMBHEL - £5
2E  AREERARER Y EHARK
ZRRRBURS -

SIS A
BEREARAREHIERUALEE @

ERER HARSERSEZHERER
%iﬁﬂﬁﬁké“if’ﬁﬂjﬂi%ﬁ/ﬁ&&% ° %
REEGBBERRANER  URZEED
ZEEM B SRR INEAZ B -
ARBBRERBERELBKESTER
B R— A EFREBE -

SNES Bk BT 2
AEERBE-FEA\F+-A=+—H

IEFERAREEZEM N EZREER
1,280,000/ 7t M FEE 1% AR 7% & F 285,000 7%

JT °

ks
EESESHBAIBH TAERRALAR

AEBZPBERE - RBRYBHRERE - &

FERMTERARGHRERT G

RERM G ER > Y —EERERRE
BEZEHE -

REE 2 RIHETHNAFREI6E48AZ
ZEENRE



————-

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, they had complied with the required
standards of the said code during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
Shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the
Chairmen, any member from the respective committees, must
attend the annual general meetings of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. External auditors shall also be invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meetings and are available
to assist the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders
relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content
of their auditor report.

|
Corporate Governance Report ¥ E8M|E

ERETESXZNEESA

ARBCHREFETESFIHERNT —EK
RABRETRAME AR ETHEITAZE
FETEFZHRETRINBRTER - L7
EREBFEFLBTENR  RERAFED
BT LERIZIRE

IR R EER

EEgNEEERRRRR ZENNLRMAE
BRI EFAFMRAENETF o RBEARQA
ZRABAA ERARLFEMRARB KR
RELBREZER  DARREMARRERD
BEREE - HEARACHERAT DR
D—ZBR AEAAAREETSRATMW
ERL - BERXEFSAFRABRFHIAEG - U
BRI % EZ RN EREE -

BREZZEBEIFKZEERAZEMKE
(WEFRGELFE) LARFEARBRRBSF
RE AR ERCRIZR o SMNEAZ 20D I FE 2 B
HEARRZBRRBFRE IR BEREZ
BENEZBMBEZRERAT - BEHE
FEEBRRZEMR -

Annual Report 2008 — 22 N\E4H 21



—
— **F'."ﬂllﬂ1

22

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand

its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses,
financial information and particulars of Directors are posted.
The Company's publications, including press releases,
announcements, annual and interim reports, shareholders
circulars are being made available on this website (http://www.
equitynet.com.hk/0725)
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD,
AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Total number of meetings held
during the year ended 31st
December 2008

Number of meetings attended:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung

(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy

Chairman)

Ms. LI Man Wai

(Qualified Accountant & Company

Secretary)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise
(Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive

Directors
Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin
Mr. LAU Chun Kay
Mr. LIAO Zhixiong
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

External Auditors

Board
Meetings
=g
=f
REBEEZZTNFTZA
=T-HIEFEREST
2EEBY A
HREEHNREY -
HTES
AR E 4
(1TBAZREFE)
EXHEL 4
(BEBEFHARA alfk
Z)
BRI EE 4
REBZT 3
hERZT 2
FHTES
g 4
()
BIFHITES
HPEAREE 1
ARB S 4
BEERE 2
SHEELE 2
SRR N/A i f
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
accounts for the year ended 31st December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the accounts.

EFEEUHREETRERBE_ETN\F
TZA=+—HLEFEZEEXERAR -

BEIBXBRUEE D 20

ARRZEBEKAREER - ENBAF
FTENRSRUENEEERNEGERER -
M AR 2 EEE MR B W32 °

AEBAFRIZTIBEXBERIBRE D 2 X5
DERBEAWHENRIRE M54 -

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY L FEMBEHRE
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the TERETAESETBTRFANCES BB
last five financial years is set out below: LEBERE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TEMFE —TTHF —TTERE —TTLF ZBENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEx FTEx FTEx FExT
Revenue = 303,143 375,383 439,352 470,496 507,628
Profit for the year 2FRH 15,829 25,408 29,460 24,398 22,294
Total assets wmEE 249,162 280,966 337,013 392,971 364,065
Total liabilities wa s (104,914) (115,755) (149,671) (180,285) (127,654)
Total equity BRERS 144,248 165,211 187,342 212,686 236,411
ANALYSIS OF THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE KEBZEBRRRIM
An analysis of the Group's performance is shown in the REBZERREOMENFECEFIBEZ T
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 9. FERER o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable

to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Directors’ Report &:

TEEFRHEER
REERAEE 2 EBREBEREF 2R

MIHEBOLMT

%
Purchases REE
— the largest supplier — S AHER 26.9%
— five largest suppliers combined — A ARHER 58.0%
Sales HE
- the largest customer —BAEP 5.6%
- five largest customers combined —hAREP 27 1%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or

customers noted above.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

profit and loss account on page 49.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.02 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$3,980,000 which was
paid on 15th October 2008.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$
0.03 per ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$5,970,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 21 to

the accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in note 22 to the accounts.

B REZBBATIREMRR(GERE
EFAERARNRE 5% A LR AR 2 IRER)
WER Lz TEHERAT P EAER

HE -

FEARDE
AEERNREBZEEHNFI9AZHER

EFDERTHBRESEBR 2B &1
3,980,000 7T YR -_EZENFE+HF+H
HIkE -

EFRERERERLGLBBIEM - &
#£5,970,000 % 7T ©

EEEN
ARARRRAZ ZHHNEAME2 -
it

KNEERAREBREARRZEBEESHNE
BHEE22 -
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2008, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$106,368,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$1,130,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights

under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of the

annual report.
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Directors’ Report

ANALYSIS OF BANK LOANS AND OTHER RITERRHEMEES M
BORROWINGS
The Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st AEERR_ZEZENF+A=+—HZRIT
December 2008 are repayable over the following periods: B REMEEERTHIAIRERE -
Finance Trust
Bank lease receipt
loans obligation loans Total
1T HEe g
BX HAEE X HE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET TR TR

On demand or not exceeding one year BIHER S —FRER 23,148 2,524 41,425 67,097

More than one year but not exceeding —F HETBBRMRE 1,863 2,228 - 4,091
two years

More than two years but not exceeding MEL HETBBRE 167 2,055 - 2,222
five years

More than five years HENUE - - - -

25,178 6,807 41,425 73,410

DIRECTORS 5=

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report NAEFEENERARE Y BEFEZEEZNT -

were:

Executive Directors HI{TES

MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman) TR (7T AR S B )

LI Man Wai 305

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco 52

MON Wai Ki, Vicky IR

MON Tiffany HE

Non-Executive Director FHITES

KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman) MR (/)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin

(appointed on 11th September 2008)
LAU Chun Kay
LIAO Zhixiong

(resigned on 11th September 2008)
MA Chun Hon, Richard

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, Mr. Cheng
Kwok Kit, Edwin and Mr. Ma Chun Hon, Richard will retire in
accordance with clause 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, all offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent
non-executive director is not more than 3 years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 58, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director and a member of the compliance committee of the
Company. Mr. Mon has over 30 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry. He is responsible for the Group's overall
strategic planning and policy making. Mr. Mon is a director of
Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise and the
father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Li Man Wai, FCCA, FCPA, aged 54, is an Executive Director,
the Compliance Officer, the Qualified Accountant, the Company
Secretary and a member of the compliance committee of
the Company. Ms. Li is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, a
Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. She joined the Group in 2001 and has over 33 years
of experience as a senior executive in finance, accounting and
administration of manufacturing, trading and servicing industries in
Asia particularly Mainland China. She is also experienced in sales
and marketing. She is mainly responsible for the Group’s finance
and administration.

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 49, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu has over 20 years of experience in the
electric cable and wire industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director
of the Group and is responsible for sales of the Group’s products
and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 34, is an Executive Director and
a member of the compliance committee of the Company. She
graduated from the Central Queensland University in Australia
with a Bachelor of Communications degree. She joined the
Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she participates in
developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung, and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of
Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 28, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Company. She holds a
bachelor’'s double major degree in Economics and Management
from the University of Sydney, Australia. She joined the Group
in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager she co-
ordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
computer department. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung
Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger sister of Ms.
Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 57, is the Chairman, a Non-Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a
member of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of
the Company. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. She is also the wife
of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother of Ms Mon Wai Ki, Vicky
and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin, aged 46, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Company. He
joined the Group in September 2008. He was an independent
non-executive director of the Company for the period from 1
April 2003 to 31 December 2005. He has been a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong for over 10 years and holds bachelor’s
degree of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong; bachelor’s degree of Laws from the Manchester
Metropolitan University, United Kingdom; Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong; bachelor’s degree
of Laws, master’s degree of Laws and doctorate degree of
Laws from Peking University, China. He has been admitted as
a solicitor in England and Wales and Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng is
an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; a Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators; an Associate Member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong; a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors;
and a Member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Cheng
has been appointed to serve on various Government boards and
committees, including Equal Opportunities Commission; Appeal
Panel (Housing); Transport Tribunal; The Board of Management of

The Chinese Permanent Cemeteries; Elite Sports Committee.

Directors’ Report =%

EENSEEEABCHARBRE
(&)

BAKHITES
FEAEE  465% 0 BARRBILIEMIT
BEEUREZ FH REREREZEES
LB - BRZZEZENFAAMAREE -
R-ZZEE=FNHA—BE_EZTHF+=-A
=+ —AHEETARARBYIERNITES
BARAEAENEEMEOBBTF - BHHEEHR
NAREBTIHERELTEM  ZESHAET
SMREEBEA BN BEKNBEBERE
E B RAREEBEE T BN - AS2EL
B RE BB o fERKE R
&%7‘%2&%%% o EB%E?%E\?%@%EW”A
*—ir NRE +Eﬂ5“@§ ’L’;\i E%%
EREEE  KEABTWERITHRAE
BE BANKEGGE  BAEEE
B REREBFEXEEEE - HiHE
BZENTEKeZEg LFEEE
RMEBEHE EAKREBERZ
ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁ EBEZESELABTKE
BT -

pa
ol mﬂ>
Bl
TIE;

Annual Report 2008 —ZE & N\ FEF#H

31



32

Directors’ Report =&

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Company. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau
is a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life
President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors Association,
and a past President and Advisor of The Federation of Asian and
Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also a member
of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee, and is currently the
Hon. Secretary of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors. He has over 38 years of experience in

management and engineering.

Mr. Liao Zhixiong, aged 41, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committees of the Company. He joined the Group
in 2004. Mr. Liao has been practising as a lawyer in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") since 1996. Mr. Liao has also been
appointed as Legal Consultant for the Local Taxation Bureau of
Shenzhen Municipality, the People’s Republic of China since
1996. Mr. Liao holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics, a master's
degree in Law as well as a PhD in Law with major in Economics
and Commercial Law from the Renmin University in PRC. Mr. Liao
was bestowed by the national government of PRC the qualification
of "Lawyer” in 1994 and the qualification of “Economist”

(specialized in Taxation) in 1995.

Mr. Ma Chun Hon Richard, aged 52, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Company. He
joined the Group in February 2006. Mr. Ma has been practicing as
a Public Accountant in Australia since 1988. He holds a bachelor
degree of Commerce from University of New South Wales major
in Accounting. Mr. Ma is a Member of the Australian Certified
Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of the Taxation Institute

of Australia.

Perennial International Limited 1205 EE R A A

EEREEREBEABCHHREE

(&)

BYFHITES ()

FIRBESEE - B.Sc. * MBA » 605K * AR A]
ZEUFNTES  BERZEG FMEE
gtz EgzIRRERZERKE -
BR—ANANFEMAREE - BIEER—F
AMEXTRMRSETEARTHERR
TBUNERTRSLTEM - BEERTE
ERTEBGZKEER  ARIBMAFF
ERTIEWEBMagZAEIeRNER - 2
RETRERLEEHNREGZEE - A
ERERET AR ENE - NEEHE
RIRHTHEEBISFEELR -

BEIESEE AR ARA ZEILIFHIT
55 EXZBg wMWZEE RERZE
ERERZEGZME - TR _FZTWFM
ALREB - BEEA-NANRNFREB/TEA
RAME ([HE ) 2 FEEmm - BEETA
—ANNEFREERINTHTT B ERE
Bl BRERATRARABZEESRE
FOEREBELT RN - TR EEEFER AR
EEBEL - BEAR - NMEEH
BFR TEMEBER—NAAFERTE
ERD (R HR)EIE

HHEESLE 28R ARAZBIUIFAITE
FhEZZBES FHNEZEE® REXZEE
RERZBEGZKE - TR _ZFTRF_A
MAREE - FREB-NN\NEFE—EH
BN EEERD - RISAMBERBHIAZ 2
BRBLTREM - g - BEERBEMNHR
XesthhrggRERNRBEE 28RS

1o

o

\



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Senior Management

Ms. Wong Wai Ping, aged 57, is the Group’s General Manager and
is responsible for sales and marketing activities. She joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 34 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry and electronics and communications

industry.

Mr. Li Ho Cheong, aged 56, is the Marketing Manager of the
Group and is responsible for marketing the Group’s products and
developing the overseas markets. He joined the Group in 1997
and has over 29 years of experience in the electric cable and wire
industry.

Mr. Mok Kin Kwan, FCCA, HKICPA, aged 38, joined the Group
in 2007 as Group Finance Manager, is responsible for finance
functions and assists in the Company secretary work. He holds a
Master's degree in Finance and has over 13 years of experience in

accounting and auditing.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

On 1st January 2008, MON Chung Hung entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contact by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. However, the contract should
be deemed to have been renewed automatically for three
consecutive year period unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the

term.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

On 1st January 2008, Li Man Wai entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st December
2010. Either party may at any time during the term terminate the
contract by giving the other not less than 3 months prior notice or,
in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent to 3 monthly
instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed to have
been renewed automatically for three consecutive year period
under the same terms and conditions of the existing contract
unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to the other

at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

On 4th November 2003, Siu Yuk Shing, Marco entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 4 years ending
on 31st December 2007. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco may at any time
during the term terminate the contract by giving the Company not
less than 6 months prior notice or payment in lieu in the years of
2004 and 2005, and 3 months prior notice or payment in lieu for
the years of 2006 and 2007. However, the Company is entitled to
terminate the contract at any time of the term by serving not less
than 3 months prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of
a sum equivalent to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other as least 2 months prior to the end of the
term. On 1st January 2008, the service contract of Mr. Siu was
renewed automatically for one consecutive year period under the
same terms and conditions
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (Continued)

On 1st January 2008, MON Wai Ki, Vicky entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to

the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

On 1st January 2008, Mon Tiffany entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st December
2010. Either party may at any time during the term terminate the
contract by giving the other not less than 3 months prior notice or,
in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent to 3 monthly
instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed to have
been renewed automatically for three consecutive year period
under the same terms and conditions of the existing contract
unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to the other
at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.

Non-Executive Director

On 1st January 2008, Koo Di An, Louise entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2010. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 3 months
prior notice or, in lieu of such notice, payment of a sum equivalent
to 3 monthly instalments of salary. The contract should be deemed
to have been renewed automatically for three consecutive year
period under the same terms and conditions of the existing
contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by either party to
the other at least 3 months prior to the end of the term.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

On 10th September 2008, Cheng Kwok Kit, Edwin entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 2 years three
months and twenty days ending on 31st December 2010. Either
party may at any time during the term terminate the contract by
giving the other not less than 2 months prior notice. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other at least 2 months prior to the end of the

term.

On 1st January 2006, Lau Chun Kay entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years ending on 31st
December 2008. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contact by giving the other not less than 2 months

prior notice.

On 31st August 2006, Liao Zhixiong entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 2 years ending on
31st August 2008. Either party may at any time during the term
terminate the contract by giving the other not less than 2 months
prior notice. The contract should be deemed to have been
renewed automatically for one consecutive year period under the
same terms and conditions of the existing contract unless notice
of non-renewal is served by either party to the other at least 2
months prior to the end of the term.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

On 13th February 2007, Ma Chun Hon, Richard entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 2 years ten
months and nineteen days ending on 31st December 2009. Either
party may at any time during the term terminate the contract by
giving the other not less than 2 months prior notice. The contract
should be deemed to have been renewed automatically for one
consecutive year period under the same terms and conditions of
the existing contract unless notice of non-renewal is served by
either party to the other at least 2 months prior to the end of the
term.

The Company has not entered into any service contract which
is not determinable within one year and without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
At 31st December 2008, the interests of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFQO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under

section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as

follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(a)

EEREETRABRBASNES
&5 2 B
R-ZFEAF+-A=1+—8 BREEHR
HA B 15 ) 352 16 2 M T 17 B 2 B AR TR
# ARTNEFREBTHABEAAFL
FARRAE (3 25 R (501 5 XV #)
ZRR1D - HRRIRIA RES P A 2 S - K
ADFEEEBAZ ZERSEMT

ALABAEFRI0EBT2EERIR

(“Shares”) vill))
Total interests
Number of shares as % of the
BB EE relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
AERLAE
A Rik =E Hits B EROIRE
®E % B i B L3 2B
MON Chung Hung - - 145,044,000 - 145,044,000 72.90%
wiRE (note 1HiE1)
KOO Di An, Louise - 145,044,000 - - 145,044,000 72.90%
B (note 2 Fi#2)
LI Man Wai 2,150,000 200,000 - - 2,350,000 1.18%
E0H, (note 3 fI¥3)
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.15%
B
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%

Elbi 2
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(“Shares”)

note 1: The 145,044,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector Holdings
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as
t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by
Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 2: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms. Koo

is thus deemed to be interested in 145,044,000 Shares by virtue of
her husband’s interest therein.

Note 3 Ms. Li Man Wai is deemed to be interested in 200,000 Shares

through interests of her husband, Mr. Tsang Cheung Ying.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As
at 31st December 2008, no short positions were recorded
in the Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of
substantial shareholders required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Share options

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 23rd
April 2003 (“Adoption Date"), resolutions had been passed
to terminate the share option scheme adopted on 5th
December 1996 (the “1996 Scheme”) and to adopt a new
share option scheme (the “2003 Scheme”) for the benefit
of employees and Directors of the Company. The principal
purposes of the 2003 Scheme are to enable the Group and
its invested entities to recruit and retain high calibre eligible
persons and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group or invested entities, to recognise the significant
contributions of the eligible persons to the growth of the
Group or invested entities and to further motivate and give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group or
invested entities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Share options

The principal terms of the 2003 Scheme are summarized as

follows:

(1)

(ir)

Eligible person

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, Director (including
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Non-
Executive Director) or consultant of any members
of the Group or any invested entity, who, in the sole
discretion of the Directors, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group or any invested entity.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue at the Adoption Date (i.e. 19,895,800
shares on the basis of 198,958,000 shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date) unless the Company obtains
a fresh approval from its shareholders. Such shares
represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2003 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the

Company if such limit is exceeded.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each grantee

Unless separately approved by shareholders, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period must not exceed one (1) per cent. of
the shares in issue.

Option period

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it
shall commence on a date not earlier than the date on
which the option is granted or deemed to be granted
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Scheme
("Commencement Date"”) and not be more than 10

years from the Commencement Date.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified
to him or her within 10 business days from the date
on which an offer is made to an eligible person, which
must be a business day (“Offer Date”), failing which
it shall be deemed to have been rejected. Upon
acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by
the Directors at its absolute discretion and notified to
an eligible person and shall not be less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
Offer Date; (2) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the Offer Date; and (3) the nominal value of a Share.
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(iii)
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(vi)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFETHAERRAGER
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES BHoER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) B (H)
(vii)  Term of the 2003 Scheme i) ZFEE=FHEZHR
The 2003 Scheme will remain in force for a period of TET=FE 2 AU BEREMN
10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, after HEIRRET +4 - AR TEEE
which no further options shall be granted but the IR R T E=F
options which are granted during the life of the 2003 FEIFERANERE 2 BIRES A
Scheme may continue to be exercisable in accordance BEBERE ST =FE 21T
with their terms of issue and the provisions of the 2003 R T LATTE - M= =45
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force BEEMES A ERLAD
and effect in respect thereof. B+ RIER -
Up to 31st December 2008, no options have been granted HE_ZZN\F+_A=1T—H" ¥
under the 1996 Scheme or the 2003 Scheme. REBRB-NANARFHE R _ZZT=

FRIERHBEERAE

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was Br ESCRR#ER AN - AN ) 3k E Al Bt
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any BRBEARF AL RIELFERZHE
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of FERRBESTHEZTHABELESE
the Company or any of their associates to acquire benefits ZEEBEATEREARD A K EAMm
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the ERDEABEE Z RO SKESFMER

Company or any other body corporate.

42  Perennial International Limited 18 £5 &£ E5 R 2 T



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Other than the interests of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2008, the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Company
of the following corporation.

Number of shares

FERRRAEDFIRE 2B

BEXHBBEZARREERTIETHRAR
ZhEmo o RZEENFF+_A=1t—H"
REBEEFRBERIIEIBCGZRENTE
ZEBTMARCE - AT EAEBAERRRZH#E
@ (ERREHRRPERD) -

Total interests
as % of the

ROEA relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BREREEE

A Rik EE Hity <2 BRITRE

®E i i gy & g 2B
Spector Holdings Limited 145,044,000 - - - 145,044,000 72.90%

The share capital of the above company is owned as to 99.9% by
Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo
Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2008, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial

shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware,
there were no person who, as at 31st December 2008, directly
or indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

As at 23rd March 2009, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this report, approximately 25.70% of the issued
capital of the Company is held by the public as required by Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules.

AT Z AN E R 99.9% M & IR e A
B #HTH01%HBHRETLTHEES -
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A=+—8 " RE&E
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ﬁ
BX
X
X
mmp
fe

—EFE

777

B BRI RSN BLRESEMA
NE+ZA=+—81" ﬂzﬁ{ﬂﬂ/\tﬁﬁﬁ
REFALERRAEARARLEMBRRD
BT B % S A E2 Bt i as -

HEZTThGF=ZA=+=8 " ARSI
BRI RENTHE  RARMBEEITRA
#E25.70% HARER - & EmRAISE
8.08 &2 HE °
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|
Directors’ Report EE 4%

-i_d_

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting

a competing business to the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 28th February 2007, the Company entered into a master

agreement with (“PIEL") &/ T1E&F# H O BBRAE], pursuant to
which PIEL would purchase the Goods from the Group for a period
from the date of execution of the Master Agreement to 31st
December 2009.

PIEL is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Jing Zhuan, a director of
Perernnial Cable (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. ("PCS”). PIEL is thus a
connected person of the Company and the transactions between
PIEL and the Group constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Group has been supplying the Goods to PIEL since April 2006
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered to
independent third parties. However, no master agreement was
ever entered into by the Group with PIEL. Their past transactions
were constituted by individual written purchase orders. The
Master Agreement serves to provide a framework for the supply

of Goods to PIEL on a long-term basis.

The revenue arising from the supply of goods to PIEL for the year
ended 31st December 2008 was RMB75,000 (about HK$ 79,000).

Perennial International Limited 18 &5 E A R A 7]
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions were entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties and in
accordance with the relevant written purchase orders governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to the Listing Rule 14A.38, the Board of Directors
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain factual
finding procedures on the above continuing connected transaction
on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Related Services 4400 "Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon
Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have
reported their factual findings on the selected samples based on
the agreed procedures to the Board of Directors.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2009
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Ilndependent Auditor’s Report &3

-i_d_

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PERENNIAL INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated accounts of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 127 which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st
December 2008, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
ACCOUNTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated accounts
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
accounts based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the accounts, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the accounts
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated accounts give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31st December 2008 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2009
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onsolidaed Profit and Loss Account %31

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z—FF/\F+=-H= 7‘—51.4;@%;
S iy

2008 2007

—EENFE —TTtF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Hizt FHET FHET

Revenue Wz 4 507,628 470,496
Cost of sales SHERKR (421,229) (390,008)
Gross profit EF 86,399 80,488
Other income H Uz 5 1,606 9,876
Distribution expenses 2R (11,522) (9,521)
Administrative expenses 1T (43,999) (46,067)
Other operating expenses Hib gz (2,800) (2,230)
Operating profit il 6 29,684 32,546
Finance costs MiER 7 (4,724) (6,306)
Profit before taxation BRI A 24,960 26,240
Taxation HiIE 8 (2,666) (1,842)
Profit for the year ANEF R T 9 22,294 24,398
Dividend B2 10 9,950 7,960
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) SRREA RESEZEF| (L) 11 11.2 12.3

The notes on pages 55 to 127 are an integral part of these 55 ZF 127 AWM R4 e MR ER
consolidated accounts. Efn -
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idated Balance Sheet A8 EEEER

As at 31st December 2008 R=—FEZFN\F+-A=+—H

2008 2007
—ETN\F ZETHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat FTExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEMENEE
Leasehold land and land use rights T AR E K (s A A 14 34,694 29,562
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB k& 15 122,401 108,844
Investment property WA 16 8,600 8,600
Deposits paid for additions of land use SAHETIG (R
rights and machinery -k 2,510 13,690
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE B 8(b) 1,442 2,901
169,647 163,597
Current assets mBEE
Inventories FE 18 68,542 80,984
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 19 106,576 116,131
Other receivables, deposits HEWERR - s12 Rk
and prepayments TR FRIR 4,217 7,012
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 25 776 601
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 20 14,307 24,646
194,418 229,374
Total assets HBEE 364,065 392,971
EQUITY fE=
Share capital A&z 21 19,896 19,896
Other reserves E b 22 39,261 29,870
Retained earnings RE AT
Others Hitw 171,284 158,940
Proposed final dividend R AR HARR B 5,970 3,980
Total equity s 236,411 212,686
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Consolidated Balance Sheet &4 & &

As at 31st December 2008 R-—FEZE/\F+=-FH=+—H

2008 2007
—ETN\F ZTTHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat FERT FHT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Long-term bank loans REARITE R 23 2,030 3,024
Obligations under finance THIE & KO RIE
lease contracts 23 4,283 6,850
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBRE 8(b) 5,586 5,021
11,899 14,895
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables FERE S5IE 24 31,382 53,5647
Other payables and accruals HEARIERERRAZ 24 15,220 14,441
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 25 557 376
Taxation payable s 1,499 1,051
Current portion of obligations under B S WRE—FA
finance lease contracts FE(EREE 23 2,524 2,537
Current portion of long-term bank RHRITER—FA
loans FE(EREE 23 3,148 2,077
Short-term bank loans RERITER 23 20,000 =
Trust receipt loans EEEER 23 41,425 91,361
115,755 165,390
Total liabilities FE=Er 127,654 180,285
Total equity and liabilities R REaE 364,065 392,971
Net current assets mBEEFE 78,663 63,984
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREBAG 248,310 227,581
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
=R 2= SR
Director Director
B5E E5E
The notes on pages 55 to 127 are an integral part of these E65%F 127 EMM RIS TS MR ER
consolidated accounts. B o

Annual Report 2008 —Z& \ EF 1R




52

ce Sheet EEEER

As at 31st December 2008 R—-—FEZENF+—-H=+—H

2008 2007
—ETN\F —TELF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat TET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 17 62,738 134,472
Current assets mBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHY A RIFRIA 17 63,436 -
Other receivables, deposits HAEWERR - 5]®
and prepayments RIEFFRIE 210 206
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBSEBY 20 240 141
63,886 347
Total assets HEE 126,624 134,819
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 21 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H b 22 78,537 78,637
Retained earnings REB R
Others Hh 22 21,861 32,210
Proposed final dividend R AR EARR S 22 5,970 3,980
Total equity AR 126,264 134,623
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities Dk N=NE
Other payables and accruals Ht AR R ERT A 24 360 196
Total liabilities BaE 360 196
Total equity and liabilities BERREAE 126,624 134,819
Net current assets mEVEEFE 63,526 151
Total assets less current liabilities MEERIEDEE 126,264 134,623
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
=R 33
Director Director
2 2

The notes on pages 55 to 127 are an integral part of these

consolidated accounts.

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]

BB -

EE5E 127 AN ERGZ A M MRNER



For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z — &

onsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity % & & S B K

FNFL A=+ AUFE

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
R4 Hitf#E REEF ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT THT
At 1st January 2008 “ZT\F—F—H 19,896 29,870 162,920 212,686
Profit for the year AERGEF - = 22,294 22,294
Revaluation surplus on buildings EBFzEHRH - 4,843 - 4,843
Deferred tax charged to
revaluation surplus SRR ZRERIE - (1,299) - (1,299)
Exchange difference arising
from translation of accounts
of subsidiaries MEBARZHaZERER = 5,847 = 5,847
Dividend paid RS = = (7,960) (7,960)
At 31st December 2008 RZBENGFF+ZA=1—H 19,896 39,261 177,254 236,411
Representing : HER
2008 final dividend proposed ZETN\FRIRE KRS 5,970
Others Hith 171,284
Retained earnings BEZZT/\F+ZA=1T—HLt
as at 31st December 2008 ZRBEF 177,254
At 1st January 2007 RZEZ+E—F—H 19,896 18,974 148,472 187,342
Profit for the year REERF - - 24,398 24,398
Revaluation surplus on buildings BF2EHRH - 10,366 - 10,366
Deferred tax charged to
revaluation surplus SRR ZRERIE - (1,664) - (1,664)
Exchange difference arising
from translation of accounts
of subsidiaries MEARz i ERER - 2,194 - 2,194
Dividend paid e - - (9,950) (9,950)
At 31st December 2007 RZBZ+LF+=A=1+—H 19,896 29,870 162,920 212,686
Representing : HER
2007 final dividend proposed R ERIRE 2 RERE 3,980
Others Hif 158,940
Retained earnings BE_TTtF+-A=1+—HLt
as at 31st December 2007 ZIRBER 162,920
The notes on pages 55 to 127 are an integral part of these 55 % 127 AWM RiRE M MR ER

consolidated accounts.

BB -

Annual Report 2008

—s= 5% B3I



54

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

u.'- Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZR S8R &

2008 2007
—ERN\F b
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrzt TR THT
Cash flows from operating activities EETEHNESRE
Net cash generated from operations BEEENFRSE 26(a) 42,694 27,740
Hong Kong profits tax paid FABEBFEH (785) (1,029)
Overseas tax paid FAHEINFIEH (708) (1,023)
Interest received Y ER I 2, 141 236
Net cash generated from operating activities HERHELFRS 41,342 25,924
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNRSTHRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREE (5,087) (13,792)
Deposits paid for additions of land use rights SRS A
and machinery & Ak (1,487) (6,557)
Sale of property, plant and equipment HEME « BERF 2 550
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFAERE (6,572) (19,799)
Cash flows from financing activities METHHRESRE
(Repayment of)/increase in trust receipt loans (fE8) /FgErtEER 26(b) (49,936) 28,838
Increase in/(repayment of) long-term bank loans g/ (B8) REBITER 26(b) 77 (281)
Increase in/(repayment of) short-term bank loans g/ (BR) BHRITER 26(b) 20,000 (6,000)
Repayment of capital element of
finance lease contracts ERHESNEARI M 26(b) (2,580) (2,507)
Interest of finance lease contracts MHEA DA (453) (804)
Bank loan interests FAIETHE (4,271) (5,502)
Dividend paid to the Company's shareholders MAARRRZ RS (7,960) (9,950
Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities MEED (A ELFHS (45,123) 3,794
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RAEeRBLEBY2F
cash equivalents (") /H&m (10,353) 9,919
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January FURE LA EEY 24,646 14,049
Exchange difference on cash and
cash equivalents e MRS EEYE s 14 678
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December FRESRBASEEY 20 14,307 24,646

The notes on pages 55 to 127 are an integral part of these

consolidated accounts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated accounts are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated accounts are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"”) unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs"”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of buildings, investment property and
derivative financial instruments which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of the accounts in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated accounts are disclosed in note 3.
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to the Accounts BR B K&

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FEZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FE

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(@) The following standard, amendment and
interpretations to existing standards are effective
in 2008 but are not relevant for the Group's

operations:

° The HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ and
related amendment to HKFRS 7 ‘Financial

Instruments: Disclosures’

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, HKFRS 2 - ‘Group and

treasury share transactions’

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, ‘Service concession

arrangements’

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, '"HKAS 19 — The limit on
a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that are
published and potentially relevant to the Group's
operations, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

° HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective from 1st
January 2009)

o HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1st January 2009)

o HKFRS 3 (Revised), 'Business
combinations’ (effective from 1st July
2009)

° HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective
from 1st January 2009)

° HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective
from 1st July 2009)

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, 'Distributions of non-
cash assets to owners’ (effective from 1st
July 2009)
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1.

Notes to the Accounts BR B K&

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1

1.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
The adoption of the above standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards in future
periods is not expected to result in substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

In addition, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants also published a number of
amendments to the existing standards under its annual
improvement project. These amendments are not
expected to have a significant financial impact on the

results and financial position of the Group.

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter—company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated.
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1.

Notes to the Accounts Bk B i

For the year ended 31st December 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2

1.3

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company's balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment of losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated accounts to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)~ Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the accounts of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated accounts are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional and presentation

currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit
and loss account.
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1.

es to the Accounts BR B KfzE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit and
loss account are translated at an average
exchange rate for the year; and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account as part

of the gain or loss on sale.
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1.

For the year ended 31st December 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group's companies, is classified as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held
under operating leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of investment

property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. The valuation is reviewed annually by an
external independent valuer on an open market basis.
Separate value is not attributed to land and buildings.
The valuation is incorporated in the accounts. Changes
in fair values are recognised in the profit and loss

account.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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1.

Notes to the Accounts BR B f{zF

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Buildings

Buildings comprise factories and offices.
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on
regular valuations by an external independent
valuer, less subsequent depreciation and
impairment. Any accumulated depreciation
and impairment at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to building
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in
the profit and loss account, in which case the
increase is credited to the profit and loss account
to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged against building
revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other
decreases are expensed in the profit and loss

account.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boat are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs, purchase
costs and other related expenses incurred in
connection with the construction of buildings,
plant and machinery for own use, less provision

for impairment losses, if any.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iii)

Depreciation

Depreciation on buildings is calculated to write
off their valuation less accumulated impairment
losses on a straight-line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal annual
rates used range from 2.5% to 5%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 20% or lease period,
whichever is shorter

2.5%-20%
15%-20%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 15%-20%
Pleasure boat 10%

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.

For the year ended 31st December 2008
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
profit and loss account during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in the profit and loss account.
Where revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in buildings revaluation reserve are

transferred to retained earnings.
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1.

Notes to the Accounts Bk B i

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Assets under finance lease/operating lease

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating lease.
Payments made under operating lease (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged in the profit and loss account on a

straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease assets.
Finance lease assets are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease and at the lower
of the fair value of the assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the outstanding finance balance. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current
borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is recognised in the profit and loss account
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
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1.

Notes to the Accounts BR B K&

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Cost mainly represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plants and buildings are situated for a
period of 46 to 50 years from the date the respective
right was granted. Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over
the period of the leasehold land and land use rights.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is

recognised in the profit and loss account.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items
on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as
follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and

shipping cost.

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.
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Notes to the Accounts B& B Kz

For the year ended 31st December 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

Inventories (Continued)
(i)  Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced

price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling

expenses.

Trade and other receivables
The Group's trade and other receivables are

categorised as loan and receivable financial assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivable. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the profit
and loss account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in the profit and loss
account.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are categorised
as loan and receivable financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.
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1.

u.l-r[:l.otes to the Accounts B B Hff&F

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.12

1.13

1.14

Trade and other payables
The Group's trade and other payables are categorised
as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings
The Group's borrowings are categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit and
loss account over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are charged to the profit and
loss account in the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to
the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time

of leave.
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1.

Notes to the Accounts B& B Kz

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plan are expected to be
settled within twelve months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

Retirement benefit costs

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPFE") scheme in accordance with Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ remuneration received. The Group's
contributions to MPF scheme are expensed as
incurred. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an

independently administered fund.

For employees in the Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme managed by the local municipal
government in the Mainland China. The Group’s
contributions to the retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred while the local municipal
government in the Mainland China undertakes to
assume that the retirement benefit obligations of
the qualified employees in the Mainland China.
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Notes to the Accounts BR B f{zF

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the accounts. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Accounts Bk B i

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERRBEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.16 Revenue recognition 1.16 W AR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration WABEEREER EFEBEH

received or receivable for the sale of goods, interest
income and operating lease rental income in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discount, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration of the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title

has passed.

(i)  Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(i)  Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Accounts BR B f{zF

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.17

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Dividend distribution

Final dividend proposed to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the accounts
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segments as the secondary
reporting format.

Unallocated costs and income represent mainly
corporate expenses and income from investment
property. Segment assets consist primarily of
leasehold land and land use rights, property, plant and
equipment, inventories, receivables and operating
cash. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.
Unallocated assets represent deferred tax assets and
investment property. Unallocated liabilities mainly
comprises deferred tax liabilities, taxation payable,
obligation under finance lease contracts, accruals for
corporate expenses and short-term bank loans. Capital
expenditure mainly comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land and land use
rights.
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 &%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.19

1.20

1.21

Segment reporting (Continued)

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
where the assets are located.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
caterorised as financial assets/liabilites at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at its fair value. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the profit and loss account.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the Company to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Company measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
“Revenue”.
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Notes to the Accounts B B ffsF

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB").
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. In addition, the conversion of RMB
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland

China monetary authority.

The Group uses forward contracts to manage
exposures arising from the fluctuation of
RMB. Details are disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated accounts.

Should HK$ strengthened/weakened by 6%
at 31st December 2007 and 2008 against the
RMB, with all other variables held constant, the
impact of the profit after taxation and the equity
for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,058,000 and HK$263,000, respectively,

higher or lower.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollar (“USD") but
the foreign exchange risk is insignificant as USD
to HK$ exchange rate is pegged.
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Notes to the Accounts Bk B Kz

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB and USD are insignificant to the Group.

Price risk

The Group exposes to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials; copper rods and
chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such

economic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group's
borrowings have been disclosed in Note 23 to

the consolidated accounts.

The Group has not used any hedging
arrangement to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group's profit after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available at
the balance sheet date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with

other variables held constant.
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Notes to the Accounts BR B Hi3

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the consolidated profit and loss account of
a 100 basis-point change in interest rate would
be an increase/decrease of HK$784,000 and
HK$740,000 for the years ended 31st December
2007 and 2008, respectively.
(iv)  Credit risk

The Group’s bank balances and cash are
deposited with financial institutions with reliable
and acceptable rating quality. Management
regularly assesses the credit risk of these
financial institutions by reviewing their published
financial information and credit rating.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of
each financial asset, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
derivative financial instruments, as disclosed on
the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Certain level of sales made to the top 5
customers amounted to approximately
HK$137,000,000 (2007: HK$136,000,000),
representing 27% (2007: 29%) of total revenue
for the year. The total accounts receivable
balance of these top 5 customers as at 31st
December 2008 was HK$32,680,000 (2007:
HK$39,673,000).
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Notes to the Accounts BR B iz

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed
by external credit agents, and makes periodic
assessment of the customers’ payment history
to assess the recoverability of trade receivables
of its customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities with staggered maturities to reduce
refinancing risk in any year and to fund working
capital, debt servicing, dividend payments, new
investments and close out market positions
if required. The Group maintains significant
flexibility to respond to opportunities and events
by ensuring that committed credit lines available.
As at 31st December 2008, the Group had
available banking facilities of HK$230,764,000
of which HK$73,410,000 were utilised. In
March 2009, the Group has obtained SME loans
amounting to HK$16 million for a period of 3
years. These SME loans are repayable on a
monthly instalment basis.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

At 31st December 2007
Other payables and accruals

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. MKEKERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years
1R 1226 R 2E5F R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FE T FE T FET
Group AEE
At 31st December 2008 R-ZEZENFE+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEHE 23,336 1,907 168
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 2,808 2,390 2,108
Trust receipt loans EEBURE R 41,652 = =
Derivative financial instruments PTEERIA 557 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMPERFRIE
and accruals K pEET 46,602 - -
At 31st December 2007 R=-ZBZ2LtFE+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEHE 2,310 2,272 887
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 3,101 2,890 4,660
Trust receipt loans EEBURE R 92,166 = =
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 376 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 RHMPERFRIE
and accruals K pEET 67,988 - -
Company VAN |
At 31st December 2008 R-ZBBENF+=-A=+—H
Other payables and accruals E AR A R ERT 360 - -



FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

2.

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial

instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into

relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining period

at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T ZENF+=-H=+—HILFZ

BEBREE ()

TERAOMAKRENKENITES R
TEARERMARBEIHA2ARE
HEERZEAMIMARIGEE -
ERARENSBE RO RRR

TRE °

Within 1 years

—FR
HK$'000
FExT
Group =5
As 31st December 2008 RZEZENF+ZA=+—H
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHIINES XY
Outflow Piitas 10,892
Inflow mA 10,397
At 31st December 2007 R-ZEZ+FE+HA=+—H
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHEIINES LY
Outflow Vi) 30,264
Inflow mA 30,600

(b) Captial risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital

management is to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, maintain a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

(b)
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Captial risk management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholder, issue new
shares or raise and repay debts. The Group's capital
management objectives, policies or processes were
unchanged during the years ended 31st December
2007 and 2008.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings include non—current
borrowings and current borrowings (Note 23). Total
capital includes total borrowings and total equity as
shown on the consolidated balance sheet.

2.
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The gearing ratios at 31st December 2007 and 2008 BHE_ZTHR-ZTTN\F+=
were as follows: A=+t—RIEFEEBEEELX
LU
2008 2007
—EETNE ZEELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAT
Total borrowings riEs 73,410 105,849
Total equity e iR 236,411 212,686
Total capital HBER 309,821 318,535
Gearing ratio BEEELX 24% 33%

The decrease in the gearing ratio in 2008 is mainly

due to decrease in trust receipt loans.
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For the year ended 31st December 2008

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
and short—-term borrowings approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturities. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is

available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities held by the Group is the
current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining

financial instruments.

2.

Notes to the Accounts BR B iz

BE-CE/\EF A=t —EUFE

BHEREE ()

(c)

N

AVEREE
SENVBEERABRRRERS
MRS EEY  BHREMEK
R B RE MR R E
fERHREERELD AR mE
EEAAREE - WKEREERN
MBRBEN AR BENGEZRRE
BHARERENAEERLUSH
TARBHNEA TSN KR
o

HEEEMBEENERIAZA
REREEERNTISRET
R ARERANEREERA
BENTSRERSHERE -

REEABRMZEENERTA
AR ENREERNEE - &
BMAZRETEARRESELE
BEROTSERELRR -
HEBAMABUT AN TS RE
R GERELETE - EMEIM
PIaEFTRERIR SR E - MIAE
FHHBERMTANRARE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

82

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for taxation. Sufficient provisions are
set aside to meet all tax liabilities. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Estimated fair value of properties

The fair values of investment property and office and
factory buildings are determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent professional valuer. The fair
value of investment property is determined on an
open market value basis by reference to comparable
market transactions and where appropriate on the
basis of capitalisation of the net rental income/net
income after allowing for outgoings and in appropriate
cases provisions for reversionary income potential.
The fair values of office and factory buildings are
determined on depreciated replacement cost basis.
These methodologies are based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions as to income
and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing

and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue

recognised during the year is as follows:

3.

4.

Notes to the Accounts iR H [fi&

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

AEeSTAERRR (&)

(b)

Rt E R RE

BREME  BARIBEEFHR
RERESEEERH —BUEX
HERRE - REMENRAE
S2EALRT SRR ART S
B MEERED REHM
BENSERARB(EEES
H)BERHFHES KA FK
AN WRARTITHBTFOAAER
FEREERA JVRARE - AL
TETIRBARR SR MEFH—
RN EH WA R
REEBERMAE HRER °

Wk D EBER

AERETERLEHUENETERRE
REMRER - FRIIRZIKRESLT

2008 2007

—EENE —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHET

Sale of goods HE 507,628 470,496
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s to the Accounts i B ff&F

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment results
for the year by business and geographical segments are as
follows:

Business segment

The segment information has been revised to only present
cable and wire products business segment as Group's
principal activities are the manufacturing and trading of
electric cable and wire products. The property investment
segment has not been presented and has been regrouped
as unallocated since its contribution is less than 10% of the
Group's total revenue, results, assets and liabilities.

Wz ko ESER (&)

AEBZFERBR D BEELER
KWGDEBIOMWT

KB WER

DEERHET BRENER M EERE
BEBESBAAEBUNRNEREERS
BREBBREMABEEEY - MERE
DERBE2HNWEHRARDEE LD
BOEBMGEAEERKZE  XE - &
ERABEIN10% -

2008

—EENF

HK$'000

FEx

Cable and wire products BEERERER

Segment revenue PR R 507,628
Segment results DELELE 35,300
Unallocated costs, net of income ROLER - HBRKA (5,616)
Operating profit il 29,684
Finance costs BM%ER (4,724)
Profit before taxation FRE A a7 24,960
Taxation A (2,666)
Profit for the year N A 22,294
Depreciation e 8,655
Amortisation i 900
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(CONTINUED)

Business segment (Continued)

The segment assets, liabilities and capital expenditure at
31st December 2008 are as follows:

Notes to the Accounts

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

Wz ko ESER (&)

EBoEIER ()

BE  BEREAMERASAT

ey,

R=FENF+=A=+—R2HH

Cable and

wire products Unallocated Total
ESARERES E i wme
2008 2008 2008
ZEENF —ETN\F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHT
Assets BE 354,023 10,042 364,065
Liabilities afE 90,285 37,369 127,654
Capital expenditure BN 17,754 - 17,754
2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FHIT

Cable and wire products BRARERER
Segment revenue pan=itE 470,496
Segment results DEBFELE 33,988
Unallocated costs, net of income ROBRER - HRKA (1,442)
Operating profit il 32,546
Finance costs MSER (6,306)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 26,240
Taxation 18 (1,842)
Profit for the year AREE i F 24,398
Depreciation e 7,714
Amortisation B 787
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wzm Ko #MEHR (&)

(CONTINUED)
Business segment (Continued) Ko TER ()
The segment assets, liabilities and capital expenditure at RZZEZLF+_A=1T—H2ZH
31st December 2007 are as follows: BE - BEREARERIT :
Cable and
wire products  Unallocated Total
BRMEBRESR RoHHe FEE
2007 2007 2007
—EELF —EELF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT
Assets BE 381,470 11,501 392,971
Liabilities =N 161,357 18,928 180,285
Capital expenditure BEARMERY 13,792 — 13,792
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Notes to the Accounts B§

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

There is no sale between the geographical segments.

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WamkoEBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical segment ith & 7 & & K
Segment Segment Total Capital
revenue results assets expenditure
pan:il DEELE REE EAMEX
2008 2008 2008 2008
—EEN\G BB\ ZEEN\F ZEZN\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT FTER FHERT FET
Hong Kong &5 217,971 19,861 121,201 29
Mainland China ERlEipN 84,370 6,296 180,851 17,725
Other Asian Countries E A ZEMEIZR 43,098 3,799 10,740 -
America E 155,177 4,726 49,724 -
Europe B 7,012 618 1,549 -
507,628 35,300 364,065 17,754
Unallocated costs, RAOBER -
net of income BRI (5,616)
Operating profit iyl 29,684
Segment Segment Total Capital
revenue results assets expenditure
2 EBUER DEBFELE wEE EAMRX
2007 2007 2007 2007
—TELE ZZELFE BT E _TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHTT FHT FHT
Hong Kong % 233,229 15,536 134,868 654
Mainland China B R 81,881 4,846 206,364 13,138
Other Asian Countries E A THMEIZR 37,953 3,891 7,461 =
America =M 107,982 8,713 37,618 -
Europe B 8,482 962 6,660 =
South Africa FIZE 969 40 = =
470,496 33,988 392,971 13,792
Unallocated costs, ROWMERA -
net of income HBRBA (1,442)
Operating profit T 32,5646

18 53 78 2 P SBAE AR SH 6 o
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5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hiblks
2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Gross rental income from REMERS
investment property WA ERE 320 278
Revaluation surplus on WEMEZ
investment property BHAHK - 3,900
Reversal of impairment provision bE Y S &
on property, plant and equipment 2 VR {E B4 - 2,674
Tax incentive income TS EA - 1,555
Sundry income H A A 1,145 1,233
Interest income FEMA 141 236
1,606 9,876
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OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging the

following:

Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

6. KERA

EaME GEA) /B TIIEE

2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Amortisation and depreciation: BHNITE
Amortisation of leasehold land HE T R T
and land use rights 5 R 5 900 787
Depreciation of owned property, BEVF  WE
plant and equipment REBInE 7,200 5,560
Depreciation of property, plant REREBEL
and equipment held ESEPA/E IS
under finance lease contracts TS KRR AT & 1,455 2,154
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRD B & 1,444 1,200
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMRAR 349,811 332,764
Net exchange loss HNEFE1E 166 1,542
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFZ
of land and buildings LEBAES 255 350
Outgoing expenses in respect
of investment property S/ ES & 14 18
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment HEEE 184 506
Net loss/(gain) on derivative financial
instruments PTHESRMITAFER (W) 6 (225)
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 e WG 8 1,246 28
Provision for returns
and doubtful debts RERRERE 2,419 =
Staff costs (including directors’ STIRA (BREESHE)
emoluments) (note 12) (FizE12) 68,739 55,729
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s to the Accounts BR B ffzF

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2007:17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has

been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the

consolidated profit and loss account represents:

7. FINANCE COSTS B%ER
2008 2007
—ETN\F ZET+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FIT
Interest on bank loans — wholly RITERF B —

repayable within five years BARAFRNEHER 4,271 5,602
Interest of finance lease contracts HESOFR ZFE 453 804
4,724 6,306

TAXATION BiE

(a) BAEFBBIDBRBEREE 2 b5t
JERBIEF16.5% (ZTTLF:
17.5%) 2 TR - /B HN&E F
MIBARNEBERFE Z (A5 ER
T s AR H A EBIR 2 31T

BEEE -

ks Gt A BRAERERZ R

il

2008 2007
—EE\E TP
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Hong Kong profits tax EBNEB 1,088 1,272
Overseas taxation TEINGIE 1,113 1,141
Over-provision in prior year FRIEBEEREE (260) (35)
Deferred taxation relating to the
origination and reversal of TR ERMNEL
temporary differences (note 8(b)) e HEEl 2 RER I 725 (536)
2,666 1,842
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8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Notes to the Accounts B§

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

BiTE ()

AEEABRBATG A 2 AR
BREBEBNESHEMAEZ

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate

of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)
Income not subject to taxation
Effect of different taxation rates

in other countries

Expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior year

Utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses

Effect of change in taxation rate

Others

Taxation charge

BTt At )

ERE16.56% (T4 -

17.5%)stE 2 Fi18
BEZRRZ WA

HiBERTRABE 2 &

AR Z S
F AR RS

ERRRAREER IR
RS a7

HAh

RN

BHBEZZROT :

2008 2007
—EENF  —FTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT i
24,960 26,240
4,118 4,692
(1,811) (2,351)
821 (778)

615 687

(260) (35)
(550) 116

(319) -

52 (389)

2,666 1,842

During the year, as a result of the change in the Hong
Kong profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%, deferred
tax balances have been remeasured.

RER AREBANESHER
17.5% #AIKE16.5% @ IE L i 18
EHREEHE ©
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o the Accounts BE B Mzt

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z—ZFZE/\F+=-A=+—HIFZ

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. WHIEH (&)

(b)  The movements on the net deferred tax liabilities (b) FELEHEEEREZEHOT :
account are as follows:

Group
rEH
2008 2007
“ETNE ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
At 1st January n—A—HB 2,120 992
Deferred taxation charged/
(credited) to the consolidated
profit and loss account Bk (Gt irA1BmR 2
(note 8(a)) IRIERE A (Mi3E 8(a)) 725 (536)
Deferred taxation charged to
assets revaluation reserve MR EESMGFEHZRETIR 1,299 1,664
At 31st December W+=—A=+—8 4,144 2,120
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHEAS
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities are as follows: RERIBAERA 80T ¢
Group
rEE
Tax depreciation and
revaluaton surplus
BETEREGRE
2008 2007
—EENF ZET+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1st January ®—A—H 5,021 3,662
Credited to the consolidated
profit and loss account BirEEmEHETA (734) (305)
Deferred taxation charged to assets
revaluation reserve M EESEGHEECEERIE 1,299 1,664
At 31st December B+=A=+—8~ 5,586 5,021
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Notes to the Accounts §

For the year ended 31st December 2008 # % = FZE/\FE = H= 'f%
M rrre.

TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. HiE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEHRELME (F)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled: A EEERITEE & ¢
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
— within 12 months +=EAR - =
— more than 12 months BAT+—EA 5,586 5,021
5,586 5,021
Deferred tax assets EEREBEEE
The movements on the deferred tax assets are as follows: EEFRIBEEREB 28T ¢
Group
KEE
Tax depreciation and
Tax losses revaluaton surplus Others Total
B RENERERRS 2t HE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EE\FE ZTTLE “TE/\F Z2THF “FETN\F ZETLE CEEN\E ZTTHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEL TEn FEL TEn FEL TEn FAL
At 1st January R—A—H - 1,623 2,376 1,047 525 - 2,901 2,670
(Charged)/credited to
the consolidated
profit and loss (108),/5tA
account BABEE - (1,623) (1,734) 1,329 275 525 (1459) 231
At 31st December RtZA=1+—H - - 642 2,376 800 525 1,442 2,901
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o the Accounts BE B Mzt

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z=FF/\F+=H=+—HIF/Z

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. BE(E)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEHREEE (F)
Deferred tax assets to be recovered: AU ERER IH & 2
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
— within 12 months +=@EAR - 1,623
— more than 12 months BE+ @A 1,442 1,278
1,442 2,901
There were no material unprovided deferred taxation as at RZEZTELRER_ZEZTENEFE+ A

31st December 2007 and 2008.

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year is dealt with in the accounts of the
Company to extent of a loss of HK$399,000 (2007: profit of

HK$1,160,000).

=+ HRBERRBEELHIA -

9. ARFEEF

1,160,000 7T ) °

HFARXRREBEZ2AEEERA
399,000 B L(—ZTZE+F: % F A

10. DIVIDEND 10. BE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interim, paid, of HK$0.02 G @A 2 Il 2 BIREE

(2007: HK$0.02) per ordinary share FHIRE (ZZ 245 2780) 3,980 3,980

Final, proposed, of HK$0.03 AL EBAY 3781l 2 kB
(2007: HK$0.02) per ordinary share REARE (ZZZ L4 278(L) 5,970 3,980
9,950 7,960
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10.

11.

12.

DIVIDEND (CONTINUED)

At a meeting held on 23rd March 2009, the Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.03 per ordinary share.
This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in these consolidated accounts, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st
December 2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group's profit for the year of HK$22,294,000 (2007:
HK$24,398,000) divided by the weighted average number
of 198,958,000 (2007: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

In both 2008 and 2007, diluted earnings per share is the
same as basic earnings per share due to the absence of
dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the date of balance

sheet.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

Notes to the Accounts 8k B i

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

10. B2 (&)

11.

R-BENFE=A-+=AR7T2&
#E BERRERGABREERIE
Il o 1bt TE 45 I 35 A% B0 4 B AN AR B
BREFRIIEERMARE  EEREE=
EEAE+-_A=+—BHIFEER
ORISR T Z DR ©

BREF

BREABANIDIBEFAZAERAR
FFE % 722,294,000 T ( —EZ+
F 1 24,398,000 70) MIZFANE 1T
L3 A% 2 O0#E ¥ ¥5 80198,958,000 ik
(ZZZT 4 : 198,958,000 f% )5+ & °

R-BEN\FER-FELTE A
RELBESEEBRNEER %
I | R R FAR -

12. EIRA (BREESHE)

2008 2007

—EENE T F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Wages, salaries and fringe benefits T - TE RFEINERL 65,720 53,197

Social security costs HERERA 2,262 1,898
Pension costs — contribution to RIRKAR — 58 iE @ 52l

MPF scheme fEH Z R 426 452

Others A 331 182

68,739 55,729
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o the Accounts BE B Mzt

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z=FF/\F+=H=+—HIF/Z

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY

MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2008 is set out below:

13. EENRSEEEBEAEZHE

(a)

ESHM

RE-FTT)\F+-A=+—~
ILEE - SEEFOFBOT

Discretionary Other

Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (i) Total
EENA ik e WigEs  HMEF (i) A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T
MON Chung Hung
IR - 4,560 700 12 5,272
KOO Di An, Louise
Bz - 1,320 280 12 1,612
LI Man Wai
33540 - 1,886 700 236 2,872
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
914 - 600 165 459 1,224
MON Wai Ki, Vicky
I = 306 31 12 349
MON Tiffany
wER - 396 224 12 632
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin
(i) and (iv)

BB (i) K (iv) 73 = = - 73
LAU Chun Kay (i)
SIHREL (i) 180 = = = 180
LIAO Zhixiong (i) and (iii)
B (1) B (i) 67 = = - 67
MA Chun Hon, Richard(i)
BEE (i) 82 = = - 82
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Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY 13. EEREEEBAEBZHE
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EZHM(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE-_TZTLF+=-A=1T—8
31st December 2007 is set out below: IEEFE - BREESZOFMNT:
Discretionary Other
Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
BEME e e M5 E A& R (ii) a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET THT FAT FAET

MON Chung Hung

o R - 3,490 1,592 133 5,215

KOO Di An, Louise

Bz - 1,020 639 79 1,738

LI Man Wai

E3354 — 1,250 1,135 478 2,863

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

FRBRK — 585 181 449 1,215

MON Wai Ki, Vicky

IR — 285 28 12 325

MON Tiffany

=ER — 300 337 12 649

LAU Chun Kay (i)

2IHREL (i) 180 = = = 180

LIAO Zhixiong (i) and (iii)

BT (i) B (i) 96 - - - 96

MA Chun Hon, Richard(i)

FHEE (1) 74 - - - 74

(i) Independence non-executive directors (i) BYIERITES

(ii) Other benefits include commission, quarters allowance, travel (i) HthefaFHEEre  Ba2
allowance and MPF scheme contribution. B~ EOEMREES 2K -

(i) Resigned on 11th September 2008 (il BER=TZT/N\FhA+—H

(ivy  Appointed on 11th september 2008 (iv, ZER=ZZEZN\FAB+—H
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13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b)

In 2008 and 2007, the five individuals, whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group for 2008

and 2007 included four directors and one senior staff
whose emoluments band is within HK$1,000,001 to
HK$2,000,000. The directors whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis presented above.

13. EERSEEEBAEZHE
(%)

EUESHMAL
RZZBZENFR_ZZLF A
UmkEmHFMWATAOUES K
—EEEEAE(MeERE
1,000,001 7L & 2,000,000 70
2B BEZMEEHR EX
DT o

() Key management compensation (c) EEBEABZHM
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and EXFe FEER -
benefits in kind H 2 R B 12,492 10,444
Discretionary bonuses HiERe 2,300 4,066
Pension costs — contribution RRK AR — 8B 512l
to MPF scheme fEH 2 K 108 103
14,900 14,613
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14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14.

RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

THER T HERE

A2 + 70 E Kt 0 ARSI E
A G SR KB R A REFE AT
mF -

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1st January n—A—H 29,562 30,349
Additions NE 5,602 -
Amortisation of leasehold land THAEE R
and land use rights {5 PR B 58 (900) (787)
Exchange adjustment b =A% 430 -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 34,694 29,562
2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
In Hong Kong held on: NEBES :
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years HERTZER+F2H 20,838 21,392
Outside Hong Kong held on: RBINER -
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years HERTZER+F2H 13,856 8,170
34,694 29,562

At 31st December 2008, the net book value of leasehold
land pledged as security for the Group's bank loans
amounted to HK$20,838,000 (2007: HK$21,392,000).

R-ZEEN\F+ZA=+—0 &%
B8R 17 & 3K LA Bk [ 8 20,838,000 78 7T
(ZZTZT 4 : 21,392,000 7T) K+
Ve RIS o
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o the Accounts BR B {3

F ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FFE\F1+—A=1—HIFFE
T EA b 1.!"'-‘ e

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRZE
Group
KB
Buidings (Note) Leasehold
B () mpove-— Plantand  Furnture Office Motor  Pleasure  Construction
Inside K~ Qutside HK ments  machinery  and fixtures  equipment  vehicles hoat  inprogress Total

BBk AR BAZ
4 7l E (= E ] i B RRIR %
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSQ00
ftn  TEw  TBr TAn TR TR TR B TR TR

Net book value H-5%/\5-A-8

at 1st January 2008 LEEFE 10,148 44520 3969 17,742 1397 5045 3131 13,046 9846 108,844
Addtions HE - 2555 18 7890 76 804 9 - - 12,15
Disposals i = = - (19 () (46) il - - (186)
Transfers & = 9846 - - - - - - (9,846) -
Depreciation il (261) [1.407) (396) (3,750) (163) (861) (581) (1,246) = (8,655)
Revaluation &t - 4883 - - - - - - - 4,83
Exchngeadusiment 2% - 3914 3 694 ) it 80 - - 5A03
Net book valug at HNZFBNET2R

31st December 2008 T-AZERFE 9897 64.271 4693 2,457 1330 5225 218 11,800 - 1240
At 31st December RRENE

2008 1-A=t-8
At cost it - - 12N 82,999 5,761 10518 5910 14,667 - 120126
At valuation - 2008 {AE-2008 9897 4.1 - - - - - - - 74168
Accumulated depreciation  ZEEHE - - 2578 60542 @43 B2 B8 (2867 - (188%)
Net book valug FHEE 9897 6421 4693 2,457 1330 5225 218 11,800 - 1240

100 Perennial International Limited 1832 @75 fR A



Notes to the Accounts

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FFNFT A=+ —HAUFE
e g J .

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - RERRKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Buildings (Note) Leasehold
BF () mpove-~ Plantand  Furnture Office Motor  Pleasure  Construction
Inside HK~ Qutside HK ments  machinery andfidures  equipment  vehicles boat  in progress Total

BRk  GHR BDE
L5 i E fiz i il i B ERIR %
H§000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'00
Tin TEr T T TR TR TR TEm TR T

Net book value RoERrE-A-8

at 1st January 2007 LEESE 923 323 1,720 16,710 1,063 4201 3687 1434 5,150 89,266
Additions HE - 28 2485 386 539 1,695 802 102 412 13792
Disposals i3 = = 19 (113) (41) (1) (666 = = (1,056)
Depreciation il (228 1838 (318) (3.218) (199) (602) [731) (1,380) = (7.714)
Revaluation B 1163 11,887 - - - - - - - 1300
Exchange adjustment ~ [EE;E - - 101 537 3 208 69 - 566 1516
Net book value at REERLETZR

31st December 2007 ST-AZERRE 10,148 44520 3969 17,742 1397 b,045 3131 13,046 9846 108,844
At 315t Deosmogr i

2007 t2A=1-H

At cost s = - 6,070 73568 h,566 9484 h,657 14,667 9806 124,84
At valuation - 2007 5 - 2007 10148 44520 - - - - - - - B46e8
Accumulated depreciation  ZiEHE - - 2101 81 (4169 (4439) (2526) (1,621) - (10669
Net book value EETE 10,148 44520 3969 17,742 1397 5045 3131 13,046 9846 108,844
Net book value of

fnence lease assets:  MEAESE:
At 315t December NEENE

2008 e - - - - - 3 1123 nni - 12875
At 315t Decernber NIBRtE
207 tZR=1-H - - - 926 - 40 1332 12955 - 15,263
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es to the Accounts BR B KfzE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZ/\F 1= H=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - BERZE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Note:Buildings were revalued using depreciated M R=ZZEZENF+_A=1T—HBXK

replacement cost approach by Centaline Surveyors
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
as at 31st December 2008 and 31st December 2007.

The carrying amount of these buildings would have
been HK$48,484,000 (2007: HK$38,594,000) had they

been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

At 31st December 2008, the net book value of
buildings pledged as security for the Group’s
bank loans amounted to HK$9,897,000 (2007:

HK$10,148,000).

Building are held on leases of between 10 to 50 years.

16

TERAR RIFEREEXAT
B EEBL o

WRZFEF TR A ERITE &
ZEREEESER - AIZEHEE
Y3 2 ARE (A& /5 48,484,000 74
T (ZZ T4 : 38,594,000 %
JT) °

R-BBAF+=-A=+—-8"
BRMEFES ££9,897,000 87T (=
ZTEZ 4 10,148,000/ 70) &
BF BEAREERITERZ
A -

BFHEHAI10E504F -

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. REWE
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Net book value at 1st January R—A—BZREFE 8,600 4,700
Revaluation surplus credited to the
consolidated profit and loss account EHBHRETAGEERR - 3,900
Net book value at 31st December RT+ZA=+—HAZEEFE 8,600 8,600

102

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]




16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED) 16.

(a)

Investment property was revalued on the basis of
open market value by Centaline Surveyors Limited,
an independent firm of chartered surveyors as at 31st
December 2008 and 31st December 2007.

At 31st December 2008, the net book value of
investment property pledged as security for the
Group's bank loans amounts to HK$8,600,000 (2007:
HK$8,600,000).

Notes to the Accounts

For the year ended 31st December 2008

HE=FE \FFoA=F—ALFE

ey,

REM=E (&)

(a)

(b)

BEY BB EEMERF R
AEMITERARBE-_ZEN
F+_A=+—"HAR-_ZTTLF
TZA=t+T-BARMEIESE
EA

RZZEZENF+TZA=+—
B "EERTERUEKHEE
8,600,000/ (= T T + 4
8,600,000 8 7T) MR EMEER
IR -

The Group's interest in investment property is (o) AEBZEEMEIFTWT:
analysed as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBIER -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HERTZER+FZE 8,600 8,600
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to the Accounts B& B iz

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FE/\F+—H=1—HIFF/Z

.
_+.-.rt'-"'

104

17. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 17.

RHBRRZRERKE

SUBSIDIARIES
Company
PN
2008 2007
—ETN\F —TELHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted shares, at cost I E MR A AR 20 20
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a))  FEURETEB A F158 (M7 (a) 62,718 134,452
62,738 134,472
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b))  FEULHTE 2 F17I8 (Hi+E (b)) 63,436 =

Note:

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by
the Company to the respective subsidiaries and are unsecured and
interest-free.

(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]
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18.

19.

Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

INVENTORIES 18. &
Group
EHE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Raw materials R 25,177 35,551
Work in progress B m 9,440 12,106
Finished goods EIK 35,787 5,323
70,404 82,980
Provision for slow-moving inventories ERFERE (1,862) (1,996)
68,542 80,984

TRADE RECEIVABLES

At 31st December 2008, the ageing analysis of trade

19. BWE 5 KRN

R-TEENE+-_F=+—8, EREZ

receivables is as follows: SERZERDITAT
Group
TEH
2008 2007
ZEENF ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Current — 3 months BNER— =1{& A 95,086 106,416
4 — 6 months il A —7<MEA 12,291 9,871
Over 6 months Bxm 7~ 1E A 246 1,594
107,623 117,881
Provision for returns and doubtful debts  RE & RIBIREE (1,047) (1,750)
106,576 116,131

The Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated
in HK$ and USD, and are due within one year from the
balance sheet date. The carrying values of trade receivables
approximate their fair values due to their short term
maturities.

AEBEEVREZERAEBZANBTRE
THEE RREEBRF —FRE
HeBREZERZEAEBREEQA
EROEEEFHY -
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s to the Accounts i B ff&F

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. BB 5 RN (&)

106

At 31st December 2008, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables which were past due but not impaired is as

follows:

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H 28
HESHEBRERKREZERZKRES
HaAT -

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current — 3 months Bl —=M& A 21,256 15,520
4 — 6 months mEA—7~MEAR 116 316
Over 6 months HBiE ;N E A 167 1,191
21,539 17,027

The trade receivables included in the above ageing are
considered not impaired as these relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. All impaired overdue trade receivables have been
provided for.

As of 31st December 2008, trade receivables of
HK$1,047,000 (2007: HK$1,750,000) were impaired and
provided for. The credit quality of trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by
reference to historical information about the counterparties’
default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
significant defaults in the past.
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A LRI EUE 5 RRTEITRE
AEBRE THERRNLE BT
EEEM- - mAECREAHERES
BRAEE B -

KRB \F+=A=+—-8"
1,047,000 L (ZZFZ L4 : 1,750,000
BIL) 2 EWE ZRRE BB KB o
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Notes to the Accounts iR H [fi&

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. ERE SR (&)
Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as EWE SEFEESEESH T :
follows:

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1st January n—A—H 1,750 2,206
Provision for returns and doubtful debts RERRERE 2,419 =
Net written off and recoverable during the year 4 P3F g U5 B il #4 & 51 5 (3,122) (456)
At 31st December Wt+=—A=+—8 1,047 1,750

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
date is the fair value of the trade receivables mentioned

above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit with the
exception of new customers, which are on cash on delivery
basis. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 days
of issuance. Longer payment terms might be granted to
customers who have long-term business relationship with
the Group and did not have default in payments in the past
history.

Included in the balance of the Group is nil (2007:
HK$490,000) receivable from a related company (note 27).
The credit term granted to the related company was no
more favourable than those granted to other third party
customers.

REEESKKEERBREN L7 EK
BHRAZRAE - NREERAE W
ERRIERRE -

ERPXBUEEAANT  EHEP
AREMNERARSMNR - —&M
5 REPARBREZRHLEK=1TENT
BANRK - I REEHR T R EBAEE
ERUEBARZEFR AEXAR
K2R -

HREERASEEBB AL ZER
BS2ERBREREL(ZZTLF:

AZEERRBAGTE=FE2EEK
R W HIEE -
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es to the Accounts BR B KfzE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20. RITERKRRE

Group Company
REE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF —EENF ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FET FHET
Cash at bank and /1T R EAF
in hand e 14,307 21,463 240 141
Short-term bank RHASRITIF K
deposits (note (a)) (3 (@) - 3,183 - =
14,307 24,646 240 141

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet

date

is the fair value of cash at bank and bank deposits

mentioned above.

REEERKREERBRRZNL ERITHR
ERBTERZRAE -

Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZETHF —EENF ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT FTExT FET
Denominated in: HEER
HK$ BT 10,565 3,861 240 141
RMB (note (b)) AREE (FEE (b)) 1,359 15,305 - -
usD ETT 2,299 4,492 - -
Others Hh 84 988 - =
14,307 24,646 240 141
(a) The weighted average effective interest rate on (a) RZZEZ+LF+-_A=+—H

short-term bank deposits, with maturity of 3 months
was 2.88% per annum during the year ended 31
December 2007. Cash at bank earns average interest
rate at 0.01% based on daily bank deposit rates.

Included in the balance of the Group are Renminbi
bank balances and cash deposited in the
Mainland China of approximately HK$1,359,000
(2007: HK$15,305,000). Bank balances and cash
denominated in Renminbi are subject to the exchange
control restrictions imposed by the government in the
Mainland China.
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(b)

EEE—RBRITIERNR =@
REIEAA 2 I#EFEH B FER =
52.88% ° R1TH & HMFH
0.01% ¥ B & B R 1717 X A

HRELEASELEFBRANEZ
ARBERSRBRITERN A
1,359,000 T( =& T + F:
15,305,000/87T) - AARBEK
B ZRITERRBA S HZRR
Fp B BT 2 e 2 SN 5 Il AR 1 o



For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z—FF/\F+=-H= 7‘—51.4;@%;
S iy

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. BAE

Company
/NG|
Authorised ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each
VEERANGAREME0.10/87T .2 ik

No. of shares HK$'000
f& A28 B FAET
At 1st January 2008 and RZZZENFE-A—HAK
at 31st December 2008 RZEENF+ZA=1+—H 500,000,000 50,000
At 1st January 2007 and RZTEELF—A—HK
at 31st December 2007 RZEZLF+_A=+—H 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each
BETRBRRAEBREMEO.105T
2SR
No. of shares HK$'000
f& A28 B FAET
At 1st January 2008 and RZZZENFE-—A—AK
at 31st December 2008 RZEENF+ZA=1+—H 198,958,000 19,896
At 1st January 2007 and RZEEELF-A—HK
at 31st December 2007 RZZET+F+HA=+—H 198,958,000 19,896
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o the Accounts BR B fffsF

F ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FFE\F1+—A=1—HIFFE

— sereds®
22. RESERVES 22. f#fE
Group
REHE
Exchange Building Capital Total
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption other
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves
[E &g BT BA
RinaB f#E = E{EE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tix T TR Titr
As at 1st January 2008 RZET\E-A—H 15,885 5,085 8,796 104 29,870
Surplus on revaluation of
buildings BFEHR - - 4,843 - 4,843
Deferred taxation charged to HBREEER
revaluation reserve [ 2 BERE - - (1,299) - (1,299)
Exchange difference arising
from translation of MEAR iR
accounts of subsidiaries ExzZ - 5,847 - - 5,847
At 31st December RZZZN\ETZA
2008 =t+—-H 15,885 10,932 12,340 104 39,261
As at 1st January 2007 RZZZt+E-A—-H 15,885 2,891 % 104 18,974
Surplus on revaluation
of buildings BFEHRT = = 10,366 - 10,366
Deferred taxation charged HBEEER
to revaluation reserve B RERE = = (1,664) = (1,664)
Exchange difference arising
from translation of WBAR i
accounts of subsidiaries ExzR - 2,194 - - 2,194
At 31st December i oy
2007 =1+-A 15,885 5,085 8,796 104 29,870
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22. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31st December 2008 # % =%

22. f#fE (48)

Notes to the Accounts BE

ENFFZA=1—HIFEF

Company
VNG|
Contributed Capital Total
Share surplus  redemption other Retained
premium (note) reserve reserves eamings Total
YN
RinaE (M) ZABEREE  2E0EE REABH ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THL TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 1st January 2008 R=ZEN\E-A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 36,190 114,721
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (399) (399)
Dividends paid RE - - - - (7,960) (7,960)
At31st December 2008 R=ZFEN\E+=A=1—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 27,831 106,368
Representing:- HER - -
2008 final dividend 3T\ FEIRE
proposed RERE 5,970
Others Hth 21,861
Retained earnings asat ~ HE-FF/\E+_F
31st December 2008  =T—HIEZREEF 21,831
At 1st January 2007 R=ZE+E-A—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 44,980 123,517
Profit for the year REE R - - - - 1,160 1,160
Dividends paid RE = = = = (9,950) (9,950)
At31st December 2007 RZZFE+E+ZA=1—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 36,190 114,727
Representing:- HER - -
2007 final dividend TR CERIRE
proposed RERE 3,980
Others Hih 32,210
Retained earnings asat ~ HE_FZtF+F
31st December 2007 =t—RitZREEF 36,190

Note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the Company

issued shares in exchange for the shares of subsidiaries being

acquired in connection with the reorganisation of the Group prior to its

listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents

the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares

issued and the value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired. Under

the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed

surplus is distributable to the shareholders. At Group level, the

contributed surplus is reclassified into its component reserves of the

underlying subsidiaries.

M ARBZHBABRBREARRREITRM A
Z|BNARBRDET BB ZAAR
AE LT AT EAAREE KRB R
RlzBimMES - HERARREITR
Pz EEEMRERERRZEEFE
ZE#E - REARE-NN-FRBE
(FERT)  BABBRAIHD IR TR °
EARBEZER  BABRKBRDEH DR
REMMBRR 2 FHEARED -
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o the Accounts BE B Mzt

 For the year ended 81st December 2008 #Z —FZE/NF1+-A=+—HIFEZ

5wl

23. BORROWINGS 23. EX
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current FERE
Long-term bank loans REIRITER 2,030 3,024
Obligations under finance lease contracts  FHEES 4 IE 4,283 6,850
6,313 9,874
Current &
Current portion of long-term bank loans RERITER —FAEEE 3,148 2,077
Current portion of obligations under
finance lease contracts THESARE—FREEE 2,524 2,637
Short-term bank loans REIRITER 20,000 =
Trust receipt loans EEUUEE R 41,425 91,361
67,097 95,975
Total borrowings BEN 73,410 105,849
Total borrowings included secured liabilities of BLEFBEAEMAE50,871,000%
HK$50,871,000 (2007: HK$66,470,000), which are secured TT(ZZZT 4 : 66,470,000 7C) bA
by leasehold land and land use rights, buildings and AEEMN T HAER L AE - 12
investment property of the Group. FRIEEMEEER o
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z—FF/\F+=-H= 7‘—51.4;@%;
S iy

23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23. ER(E&)
(a)  The maturity of borrowings is as follows: (a) EFWIEHBELT:
Group
*&EE
Obligations under
Long-term Short-term finance lease
bank loans bank loans Trust receipt loans contracts
RERTER ERRTER ERENEER RESHAR

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
TEn Thxr TEx TEr TR TEr TEr  TEn

Within 1 year 15/ 3,148 2,077 20,000 - M425 91361 2,524 2,537
Between Tand2years  1Z22FR 1,863 2,157 - = - = 2,228 2497
Between2andbyears  2Z5%R 167 867 - - - - 2055 4353
Wholly repayable
within 5 years SERNZHEE 5,178 5101 20,000 - 4425 91361 6,807 9,387
Over b years feihlees - - - - - - - -
Total borrowings aEn 5,178 5101 20,000 - 4425 91361 6,807 9,387
(b)  The average effective interest rates at the balance b) REEBHTHEEFEMNT

sheet date are as follows:

2008 2007

—EENE ZEETLF

Long-term bank loans RERITER 3.67% 5.50%

Short-term bank loans REIRITER 2.39% =
Obligations under finance

lease contracts TS AR 4.71% 7.32%

Trust receipt loans fErEUEER 3.99% 5.51%
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to the Accounts B& B iz

-  For the year ended 31st December 2008 BE_FEE\F1 - A=1+—HIFEF
T Lo

. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

23. EX (&)

The present value of obligations under finance lease

contracts is as follows:

(c) REMERBERREMT :

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ERELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Gross finance lease liabilities BMEHEEEER
— minimum lease payments: —ERERFEE
No later than 1 year EBiE 1 F 2,808 3,101
Later than 1 year and no later
than b5 years iR 1 FETHEALF 4,498 7,550
Later than 5 years BB 5 F - -
7,306 10,651
Future finance charges
on finance leases R AT ERR R TEE A (499) (1,264)
Present value of finance
lease liabilities RERENRE 6,807 9,387

Borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to

their fair values.
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Notes to the Accounts &
For the year ended 31st December 2008 # % = FZE/\FE = H= 7‘—%'”‘
L

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24, EREZNE  HttENRIEA
AND ACCRUALS RESTBX
Group Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZEENFE —ETHF —EENF —ETAHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FHT

Trade payables (note (a)) EREH5IE

(Bt7E () 31,382 53,547 - -
Other payables HAb e FRIE
and accruals K pEET 15,220 14,441 360 196
Total (note (b) and (c)) 4axe
(FF3E (b) K (c)) 46,602 67,988 360 196
(a) At 31st December 2008, the ageing analysis of trade (a) RZZEZENF+-_A=+—81FE
payables is as follows: NESERZ R AITAT
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—®ENF —TTLH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Current — 3 months BN —=1{E A 27,320 45,483
4 — 6 months H{EA —7~EA 3,770 7,969
Over 6 months R 7<1E A 292 95
31,382 53,647
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.
_+.-.rt'-"'

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

(b) Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
denominated in the following currencies:

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FE/\F+—H=1—HIFF/Z

24. BNEZHE  HitEARKE
RERTBI (&)

(b)

ENESHIE - EENRIEAER
JEETFRX AT IIEHFH

Group Company
rEE PN

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZEELF —EENF ZEREALF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TFHET FExT FAET
United States Dollars 27T 14,370 14,754 - -
Hong Kong Dollars BT 19,103 33,586 360 196
Renminbi AREE 12,033 18,737 - =
Others currencies HAbEHE 1,096 911 - =
46,602 67,988 360 196

(c)  The carrying values of trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximates their fair values due to their
short term maturities.
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Notes to the Accounts

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z=FF/\F+=A=—+—HIFZE

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . fTESRT A
Group
EE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETAHF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aE BE 8E&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER FHT FHT
Forward foreign
exchange contracts RENES K
— held for trading —FARER 776 557 601 376

The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts
with banks to sell and buy United States dollars in
exchange for Renminbi at predetermined rates, settled on
a monthly basis for its operating use. As at 31st December
2008, the notional amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts are HK$21,784,000 (2007:
HK$59,364,000) which will expire in April 2009.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are
determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date.

SEEERITFIEBINES L ATER
HBRERBELERBEAZETUELAR
W RAKBERKERE - RNZF
TNF+ZA=+—HBKRERERHN
[ A 49 521,784,000 8L ( Z BT 4F ¢
59,364,000587T) + WK = F T N FM A
[E i e

REER  ERIESHRIAEER
EREEMERMRE
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es to the Accounts BR B KfzE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

26. mEBEERERMET

FLOW STATEMENT
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) SHEEENFREZEIER
generated from operations
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Profit before taxation R3S Al o A 24,960 26,240
Interest income FLEYA (141) (236)
Bank loan interests RITEFRFIE 4,271 5,602
Interest element of finance
lease contracts THIES 4 2 T S &R 453 804
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment HEWE - BE REEFER 184 506
Revaluation surplus on
investment property WEMESIHRG - (3,900)
Reversal of impairment provision
on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « BE MR #ERE 2 B 5 - (2,674)
Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights B E i & T b A 900 787
Depreciation of owned property,
plant and equipment BEWE  BEMRBEIITE 7,200 5,560
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment held under RIS NFE 2 WE -
finance lease contracts S iy 1,455 2,154
Net loss/(gain) on derivative financial #$T4E& R T 2%
instruments &8 (k) 6 (225)
Operating profit before working
capital changes EEESHEH 2K =R 39,288 34,518
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  1F &4,/ (3840) 12,442 (7,492)
Decrease / (increase) in trade
receivables, other receivables, JEWE 5 8RR - E IR -
deposits and prepayments & RIERFERLD(E) 12,350 (7,789)
(Decrease) / increase in trade
payables, other payables BB SFIE - HMER
and accruals B R ERTHX O, Hn (21,386) 8,503
Net cash generated from operations “&3EE£RFIRE 42,694 27,740
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Notes to the Accounts §

For the year ended 31st December 2008 # % = FZE/\FE = H= 'f%
M rrre.

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 26. FERTRERME ()
FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during (b) FARMETESEBON
the year

Obligations under

Long-term Short-term Trust receipt finance lease
bank loans bank loans loans contracts
RERTERN BHRTER ERRBER REAORE

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
IR\ “TILE C3R\E “TRLF CRR\E “TRLE BB\ CTRLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

TEn  TRT fEx  TEnr TR TERL  TEn  TER

At 1st January ®-A—H 5,101 5,382 - 6,000 91,361 62,523 9,387 11,8%
Addition of loans EER 3,000 2,000 20,000 - 259275 267,027 - -
Repayment of loans BEER (2923)  (2,281) - (6,000 (309,211) (238,189 - -
Repayment of capital ~ (EE%

element of finance ELopd

lease contracts BAHH - - - - - - (2580  (2507)
At 31st December ®=A=1+-H 5,178 5101 20,000 - 4145 91361 6,807 9,387
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z=FF/\F+=H=+—HIF/Z

o the Accounts BE B Mzt

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Name and relationship with a related party
EIMNmiEE L OFRAR (“PIEL”) is wholly owned
by Mr. Zhou Jing Zhuan, a management of the Group.
PIEL is thus a related party of the Group.

Transactions with the related party
The Group entered into the following significant

transactions in the ordinary course of business with

27. BEBALTRS

(a) BAATHBBREE
BMmESHELE RN ERAQA
([PIELD) ARAKBELEL2EH
B BRAEEZEEAS o i
PIEL AARSKE 2 B AL -

(b) BABEALHIRS
AEBERFREANETMNTESE
HABRARERBEBHET

PIEL during the year: THERRS :
2008 2007
—ETN\F —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Sale of goods HE 79 3,733

These transactions were entered into on normal
commercial terms.

Balance with the related party

BB R S TR —REEK

=+

e
NI

(c) EBEALTHIRIEA

2008 2007

—2ENF —TTLE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FA&T

Amount due from PIEL FEU PIEL ZXIE - 490

The balance is included in trade receivables and
is unsecured, interest-free and no fixed terms of
repayment.
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ZRE(BERERE S ER) G EKR
- RBYEETEERS -



For the year ended 31st December 2008 #ZE=—FZENF+=A=1+—HIFZ

‘-."*‘ | - .
28. COMMITMENTS 28. 7E&iE
(a) Capital commitment (a) EXRFEE
At 31st December 2008, the Group had the following R-ZZEENE+=—A=+—8"
capital commitment for leasehold improvements and REEGUTEEREE &3
plant and machinery: BRI
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Contracted but not provided for SHEVEEST: 977 2,421
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REHERIE
At 31st December 2008 and 2007, the Group had no RZZBZNFR-ZFTLF =
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- A=+—8 ' XEEW &SR
2
=

cancellable operating leases. HKEHERN B2 HEHS -

() The Company did not have any significant (c) RZZETNFR-ZZTLF+=

commitments at 31st December 2008 and 2007. A=+—H ' KARIETAE
R o
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s to the Accounts i B ff&F

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FEZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FE

29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND PLEDGE

At 31st December 2008, the Group's banking facilities
amounting to approximately HK$230,764,000 (2007:
HK$220,000,000) were secured by the following:

(a) legal charges over certain leasehold land, land use
rights, buildings and investment property of the Group
with a total net book value of HK$39,335,000 (2007:
HK$40,140,000);

(b) a deed of guarantee executed by the Company
amounting to HK$181,000,000 (2007:
HK$160,000,000).

30. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,

as being the ultimate holding company.

31. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The consolidated accounts were approved by the Board of
Directors on 23rd March 2009.
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29.

30.

31.

RITRERER

R-ZTBENEFE+-_A=+—8 &&
#1230,764,000 B L( ZZT T £ F :
220,000,000 7T) Z RITEL & LA T 51
18 B {EE A

@ AEELE®TFMEAS &
39,335,000/ T( =T & L & :
40,140,000/ ) 2 & THE +
o THERAREREFRIRED
EATEZ AT

(b) ZARBNEEZ—MNERIZESHK
181,000,000 L (ZEZ 4
160,000,000 7T) ©

RRERAF
ARREFRATELE L LR S A

X 37 2 Spector Holdings Limited J 5%
IRYERR A F] o

ARE Z

KGEEHRAER-ZZEENF
“t=HEEEEeHE-

H



32. SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Accounts B

At 31st December 2008, the Company held investments or

capital in the following subsidiaries:

For the year ended 31st December 2008 # % = FZE/\FE = H= 7‘—%'
bt T S

32. HEAF

RZZETZNF+=—A=+—8" &2
AR TN B A RRFERS

Place of

incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ 2R/ RIS BRRA/ZMER TEEH B

2008 2007

Shares held directly
ERFERSG
Perennial Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1,200 Strike off on 1st May 2008 - 100%

KERUES LAER1,200%T ERZET\FHA—-BEE
Perennial Holdings Global British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding 100%  100%

Limited EBRUES LER1ET RERR
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z—ZFZE/\F+=-A=+—HIFZ

32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

32. BT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
A Ry LS HERE/FMER EXE B
2008 2007
Shares held indirectly
BESERS
Ever Peak Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100%  100%
Limited BA TRk 3BT HENE
KEERARAT
Glitter Wire & Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Inactive 100% 100%
Company Limited 0 LER 500757 mEE
REEREERRAT Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
ERFERTRN
2,000,000 7T
New Technology Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100%  100%
Limited B L@ 1,000 57T AR
HREGBRAR Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERFERTRG
10,000,000/7T
Perennial Cable Hamess Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Inactive 100%  100%
Limited Bt @Ak 10,00087 BEY
EERIARAR
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000  Manufacturing and sale 100%  100%
ERER(FE) RO 0 LA 2,000,000 57T of electric cables, wires,

Perennial International Limited 18 #F 5 E A R A 7]
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Accounts BE

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

32. BT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ 2R/ Rt HERE/FMER EX £ B
2008 2007
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEsERS ()
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment and property holding, ~ 100% 100%
BEREGRERAT RBRTES EER1ET trading of electric cable, wires,
wire harness and accessories
RERFEN: BEER
85 HARRRE
Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric cables, ~ 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly owned ~ FREIARE HK$65,000,000 wires and wire hamess
foreign enterprise) AR HEER  BRRAAER
BRER (R BRATF 65,000,000 7T
(REBEBINEE)
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Manufacturing and sale of plastic ~ 100% 100%
Limited BA TRR2BT resins and compounds
2R (F8) BRAH HERHEEBARERRIL AN
Perennial Cable (BVI) British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$50,000 Investment holding 100%  100%
Limited EBRUES LA 50,000 %7 REER
Perennial Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Dissolved on 22nd January - 100%
(H.K.) Limited BA LiBi%10,000%57T 2008
EHRE (F) BRAF ERZER\F—A-+t_HiH
New Technology Cable United Kingdom Ordinary GBP1 License holding 100%  100%
(UK) Limited B LER R FANMR
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For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z T L N\F+=-H=+—HIFZ

32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 32. B AT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
A Ry LS HERE/FMER EXE B
2008 2007
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERG (&)
New Technology Cable Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100%  100%
Pte. Limited HE LAk 2 BT T HEBR
Shinka K.K. Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
B %17 10,00,000 BT FrRER
Perennial USA Inc. USA Ordinary USD0.5 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
X ERER0.5F T wires, wire harness and
accessories
EEER 85 HEER
Rt
@ Zhangjiagang Bonded Mainland China Registered capital Dissolved on 15th April 2008 - 100%
Logistics Park Perennial HEIARE USD$500,000 ERZZENFNATRRHH
Cable Trading Co., Ltd. AR
RRERAIDRE R 500,000 7T
EIEHARATA
b Shenzhen Welldone Trading Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly ey HKD$1,000,000 wires, wire harness
owned foreign enterprise) &R and accessories
MEHREEHERAA 1,000,000 7T EEER 55 AKX
(RERBBIMER) Rt
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32. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability

company.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of
incorporation/establishment, except for:

a Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited and Perennial Plastics
(H.K.) Limited of which manufacturing activities are
conducted by their appointed sub-contractors in
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China.

b Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited and Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China; and

c Zhangjiagang Bonded Logistics Park Perennial Cable
Trading Co., Ltd. in Zhangjiagang Bonded Logistics
Park, the People’s Republic of China.

Notes to the Accounts B§

For the year ended 31st December 2008 #Z —FZE/\F1 = H=1—HI-FZE

32. BT (&)

LB AR BERAREE

BRAT RSN Bl ARz & iE i 2
FEABBMIELERIEM, Kb
2

a BEEREE)BERIFTRER
BB (BR)BRABZEERH
TyiE B EARLMBEIRINEFR
BRZEBEETT -

B ERCRI) BRA R AR
EBREBSERARNPEAR
ERBERYIFFE ; &

© RRBREMRERBEHETZ

SHBR AR NP EARKMBER
RERGRYRER
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ial Highlights B1 7§ #%3E

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZETtHF ZTTRF CZTTRF —TTQNF
Operating results (HK$'000) RELE(TER)
Revenue W 507,628 470,496 439,352 375,383 303,143
Operating profit e m A 29,684 32,546 36,271 30,313 16,658
Profit for the year AEE R 22,294 24,398 29,460 25,408 15,829
Financial position (HK$'000)  Bi#AR (T )
Net current assets FRBEE 78,663 63,984 69,059 61,150 37,595
Shareholders’ funds BRES 236,411 212,686 187,342 165,211 144,248
Per share data (HK$Cent) BRYE CBA)
Earnings per share - basic BREMN-ERKEE
and diluted 11.2 12.3 14.8 12.8 8.0
Dividend per share (interim SRS (REK
and final dividend) RERE) 5 4 4 4 3
Key Statistics TG
Inventory turnover (days) FEEE (XE) 72 89 91 94 89
Debtors' turnover (days) FEARER A (RE) 77 90 91 77 81
Creditors’ turnover (days) FERERARE (K8 34 58 52 43 63
Acid-test ratio (%) RENELE (%) 108.7% 89.7% 96.7% 98.5% 89.8%
Working capital (%) HEES (%) 168.0% 138.7% 151.6% 157.2% 142.7%
Total liabilities/total capital Bek/ BER
employed (%) B (%) 54.0% 84.8% 79.9% 70.0% 72.7%
Return on capital employed BRE AR E
(operating profit/shareholders’ (& &H /IR
funds) (%) BEE) (%) 12.6% 15.3% 19.4% 18.3% 11.5%
Return on average total assets ~ FHHEEERH=
(profit after taxation/average (BREiRiER /T
total assets) (%) BERE) (%) 5.9% 6.7% 9.5% 9.6% 7.1%
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